ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 11, 2010
8:05 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representati ve Paul Seaton, Vice Chair
Representative Carl Gatto

Representati ve Craig Johnson
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representati ve Pete Petersen

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son
COWM TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI EW DI SCUSSI ON ON POTENTI AL | MPACT OF THE U.S. SUPREME
COURT RULING IN THE CTIZEN UN TED CASE REGARDI NG CAMPAI GN
CONTRI BUTI ONS

- HEARD
PREVI QUS COWMM TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REG STER

JOHN PTASI N, Assistant Attorney General

Labor and State Affairs Section

Cvil Division (Anchorage)

Department of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented an overview related to the
di scussi on about the potential inpact of the U S. Suprene Court
ruling in Citizens United v. Federal El ecti on Conm ssion
("Citizens United").

THOMAS DOSI K, Assistant Attorney Ceneral
Labor and State Affairs Section

Civil D vision (Anchorage)

Depart nent of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- February 11, 2010



PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered a question during the discussion
on the potential inpact of the US. Suprene Court Ruling in the
Citizen United case regardi ng canpai gn contributions.

HOLLY HI LL, Director

Al aska Public Ofices Conm ssion (APQC)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded information during the discussion
on the potential inpact of the U S. Suprenme Court Ruling in the
Citizen United case regardi ng canpai gn contributions.

ALPHEUS BULLARD, Legi sl ative Counci l

Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions during the overview
di scussi on about the potential inpact of the U S. Suprene Court
ruling in Ctizens United v. Federal El ection Comm ssion
("Citizens United").

CRAI G TI LLERY, Deputy Attorney Gener al

G vil Division

Ofice of the Attorney General

Departnent of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Listened to the concerns of the commttee
during the overview discussion about the potential inpact of the
U.S. Suprene Court ruling in Ctizens United v. Federal Election
Comm ssion ("Citizens United").

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:05:44 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmmittee
neeting to order at 8:07 a.m Representati ves Seaton, Johnson,
Petersen, and Lynn were present at the <call to order.
Representatives Gatto and Guenberg arrived as the neeting was
i n progress.

OVERVI EW DI SCUSSI ON ON_POTENTI AL | MPACT OF THE U. S. SUPREME
COURT RULING IN THE CI TI ZEN UNI TED CASE REGARDI NG CAMPAI GN
CONTRI BUTI ONS

8:06: 21 AM

CHAIR LYNN announced that the only order of business was the
overvi ew di scussion on the potential inpact of the U S. Suprene

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 11, 2010



Court ruling in the Citizen United case regarding canpaign
contri butions.

CHAIR LYNN reviewed that the U S. Suprenme Court issued a ruling
on Citizens United v. Federal Election Commission ("G tizens
United") regarding free speech, particularly in regard to
contributions by corporations in support of or opposition to
candi dates and propositions. He said the issue affects everyone
running for office, from the municipal level to the legislative

branch to the admnistrative branch. He indicated his wsh to
include, as part of the discussion, how foreigners in multi-
national corporations could inpact the political process. He

expressed concern as to how Alaska can respond to the recent
court deci sion.

8:10: 34 AM

JOHN PTASIN, Assistant Attorney General, Labor and State Affairs
Secti on, G vil D vision (Anchorage), Depar t ment of Law,
presented an overview regarding the potential inpact of the U S.
Suprene Court ruling in Ctizens United v. Federal Election
Conmi ssion ("Citizens United"). First he highlighted that which
has not changed because of the ruling: corporations and | abor
unions still may not contribute directly to candidates;
di sclosure and disclainmer laws were not directly inpacted,
al t hough di sclosure and disclainmer laws in Alaska are in a state
of flux since the ruling; individuals still may contribute only
$500 every calendar year to a candidate and $5,000 to a
political party; the ballot neasure |law was unaffected; and
political party limts/contributions to candidate limts were
not affected.

8:12: 27 AM

MR. PTASIN said Citizens United was a case about candidate
el ection free speech, which did not directly interpret Al aska
law, but inplicates the state's |aws. He said U S. Suprene
Court Constitutional decisions are the suprene |law of the | and,
and states do not have greater |atitude than Congress to abridge
the freedom of speech. M. Ptasin related that Ctizens United
not only invalidated a federal independent expenditure law, it
al so validated disclosure and disclainer |[|aws. He expl ai ned
that an expenditure law is separate and distinct from disclosure
and disclainmer laws, so if an expenditure is nmade, there are
still Constitutional l|laws that allow the public to know what is
being spent on a speech and what entity is making the speech

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 11, 2010



when it is being nade. The only issue in Ctizens United was
t he i ndependent expenditure of corporations and | abor unions.

8:13: 55 AM

MR. PTASIN said the law that was invalidated was a federal |aw
whi ch banned express, corporate, and |abor union advocacy for or
against a candidate using funds from the corporation's general
treasury 30 days before a prinmary election and 60 days before a
general el ection. The court noted that corporations have
certain legal rights, but at the sane tinme, the First Amendnent
states that Congress shall make no |aw abridging the freedom of

speech. M. Ptasin said the amendnent does not Ilimt its
application to speakers, but also analyzes whether specific
expressions are protected by the First Anendnent. He said the

government cannot restrict political speech based on corporate
identity alone; there has to be a conpelling governnent interest
to restrict First Anmendnent speech - particularly political
speech.

8:15: 33 AM

MR. PTASIN related that the federal governnent tried three
separate argunments to show conpelling governnent interest, but
all three of those argunents failed before the court. The first
was the anti-distortion interest, which argued that the wealth
that corporations and |abor wunions can amass pollutes the
message of smaller corporations or candi dates. Next was the
anti-corruption interest, which is the rationale that all the
i ndependent expenditures by corporations and | abor unions create
an actual corruption or the appearance of corruption. M.
Ptasin said the courts have allowed this rationale to apply to
contributions, but an independent expenditure cannot result in
quid pro quo corruption. He stated, "Wwen you try to bal ance
t hat against the potential or appearance of corruption, you have
to balance that against free speech, and the court wasn't

willing to say that the appearance of corruption by all this
i ndependent expenditure is a good enough reason to essentially
ban ... political speech.” M. Ptasin relayed that the third

argument was a shareholder protection interest, arguing that
sharehol ders are powerless to stop the nmessage of corporations.
The court considered that the internal mechanisns of a
corporation could ensure that the smaller sharehol der could seek
redress for any inproper nessaging. Wthout a conpelling
interest, the federal |aw was unconstitutional

8:18: 15 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- February 11, 2010



MR. PTASIN said corporations and |abor unions are contenplated
by Alaska's |[|aws. The only inpact on Alaska law is that
corporations and |abor unions cannot nmake independent politica
speech in canpaign elections, which relates to AS 15.13.067 and
AS 15.13.135. He said the category of expenditures is broad; it
i nvol ves speech, especially through the definitions of express

communi cations and el ectioneering conmunications. He stated,
"Those are political speech, and ... | think, under the |aw,
expenditures |like that ... are subject to scrutiny after
Citizens United." Alaska law, through the definition of

expenditure, restricts corporations and | abor unions from making
i ndependent commruni cation on a political speech.

8:20: 39 AM

MR. PTASIN said disclosure and disclainer |aws were not
i npl i cat ed; cor porations and | abor uni ons cannot make
expenditures anonynously. He stated, "Before, we just

restricted all expenditures, we didn't allow a corporation or
| abor union to nmke any expenditure in a candidate election.”
M. Ptasin related that there are certain areas of the |aw that
do not apply to corporations and | abor unions. One area is the

treasurer |aw. He explained, "It doesn't apply to corporations
in that when a corporation or a labor union wants to mnake an
i ndependent expenditure in a political speech, ... were that to

be applied to corporations, they don't have to do that through
their treasurer, and there are certain other |aws where
certain entities, |ike groups, have to make that speech through
their treasurer.™

8:22:26 AM

MR.  PTASIN, in response to a question from Representative
Seaton, said because "we restricted any expenditure in a
candi date election, there was no reason to apply the treasurer
requi renent on corporations and |abor wunions for independent
speech. In response to Representative Seaton and Chair Lynn, he
said he is working on an internal analysis of all the different
i ssues, which he predicted wuld be conpleted soon and
dissemnated to the legislature, the Alaska Public Ofices
Comm ssion (APOC), and the public.

8:24: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON directed attention to page 28 of a
handout in the conmttee packet entitled, "Al aska State Statutes

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 11, 2010



Canmpaign Disclosure Law," and noted that wunder AS 15.13.084
(1))(O(ii), regarding prohibited expenditures, there 1is an
exenption for an expenditure nmade for "printed material, other
than an advertisenent made in a newspaper or other periodical".

MR. PTASIN offered his belief that that pertains to the
expenditure of an individual. In response to Representative
Johnson, he said the definition of "person" includes |abor union
and corporation, and it is a separate and distinct definition
from"group” and "i ndividual"

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON formul ated that a business could nmake an
anonynous expenditure on printed naterial, other than an
advertisement nmade in a newspaper or other periodical.

MR. PTASIN pointed out that subparagraph (A) specifies that the
exception pertains to an anonynous expenditure "paid for by an
i ndi vi dual acting independently of any group or nongroup entity

and independently of any other individual". He clarified that
unlike the definition of "person", "individual" neans a human
bei ng.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON concluded, then, that that neans a
corporation, labor wunion, or political action conmttee (PAC
could not nmke an anonynous flier wthout a disclainmer under
this statute.

MR. PTASIN answered that is correct.

8:26: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked M. Ptasin to confirm that an
individual could print fliers supporting an initiative or

candidate and distribute the fliers door to door, and that
i ndi vi dual woul d have no di scl ai mer responsibility.

VR. PTASIN answered, "Under this very distinct set of
ci rcunst ances, yes."

8:28:10 AM

MR. PTASIN, in response to Representative Seaton, offered the
following definitions: entity - a candidate or individual,
which is a natural per son,; person - a catch-all for
corporations, labor wunions, and business entities; non-group
entity - a business that is run for the principle purpose of
political speech; and group - two individuals joining together

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 11, 2010



for the principle purpose of influencing an el ection. He said
the internal analysis being done is trying to establish what
Citizens United does to persons under AS 15.13.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON concluded that under the aforenentioned
statute, "person” not only includes a labor union and
corporation but excludes "individual" and "natural person".

MR PTASIN answered that is correct.
[ REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG shook hi s head. ]

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON opi ned that that is not entirely correct.
He offered his wunderstanding that "natural person" neans
"person”, which is basically the sanme as a corporation.

MR. PTASIN responded that "individual" is a "natural person".
He reiterated that "person" is defined as including |abor
uni ons, non-group entities, groups, and corporations. He said,
"They have separate and distinct nmeanings throughout the
statute."

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked M. Ptasin to confirm whether or not
he 1is saying that in APOC statutes, "person”  excl udes
"individual" and "natural person”

MR PTASIN said he is alnpst certain that is correct, but
deferred to M. Dosik for confirmation

8:31:17 AM

THOMAS DOSI K, Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Labor and State
Affairs Section, Cvil Dvision - Anchorage, Departnent of Law,

related that wunder statutes related to APOC, "person" is a
broader than "individual", because in addition to including an
individual, it also includes corporations, |abor unions, trusts,

and "pretty nmuch any other recognizable entity or organization."
8. 32: 06 AM

MR. PTASIN said when a disclainer and disclosure law refers to
"persons”, it is referring to corporations and |abor unions. He
related that AS 15.13.084 establishes that corporations and
| abor unions cannot mneke their political speech anonynously.
Under AS 15.13.040(d) and (e), he said, the corporation and
| abor union does have certain disclosure requirenents. For
exanple, if the corporation nakes independent political speech

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- February 11, 2010



it must report that independent expenditure within 10 days of
making it.

8:33:54 AM

CHAIR LYNN told M. Ptasin that at sone point, he would I|ike
nor e i nformation regar di ng forei gners in mul ti-nationa
corporations who have the influence over whether or not to nake
i ndependent expenditures.

8:34:12 AM

MR. PTASIN, in response to Representative Johnson, stated that
through the expenditure definition, political speech includes
express communi cations and el ectioneering conmrunications. He
said, "It has to be a yea or nay on a vote, and if there's no
el ection, can't really fall under the expenditure |aw"

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked, "What if there's a piece of
| egislation before the legislature that they express a yea or
nay vote to?"

CHAIR LYNN remarked that the legislature votes all the tine, for
exanple, in commttees and on the House fl oor. Furt hernore, he
noted, legislators vote for candi dates.

VR. PTASI N r esponded, "Certainly, and under express
communi cation, that involves a yes or no vote on a specific
candi dat e. Again, the ruling only invalidated independent

expenditures on candi date el ection.”
8:35:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that Boeing has a conpany in
Washington that is alnpbst exclusively wunion, while Boeing' s
conpany in South Carolina is exclusively non-union. He asked if
a union can claimto be the corporation, if nost of the workers
are in the union.

8:36:45 AM

MR. PTASI N responded that the decision applies equally to |abor
uni ons and corporations. He said that at least in a federa
el ecti on now, Boeing can nmake a speech through its own treasury,
the |abor union can nmeke that speech through its own treasury,
and the disclainmer and disclosure laws "follow " He clarified,
"The | abor union has the sane right after Ctizens United."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 11, 2010



8:37:30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said sone television comercials appear to
speak as the voice of the workers, advertising that the conpany
i s good. He asked if the people of that conpany can speak in
support of a candi date.

MR. PTASIN answered that the distinction is whether it is the
| abor wunion nmaking the speech or a group of enployees. If the
|atter, they are a group. |If it is the labor union fromits own
organi zati on maki ng the speech, the [independent expenditure] is
fromthe labor union's own treasury. |In response to a follow up
question from Representative Gatto, he said the distinction
between a group of enployees in a labor union and the |abor
union itself is a fine one. He explained that the group of
enpl oyees has to di scl ose and report as a group
Hypot hetically, he said it would be possible to tell by |ooking
at the APCC report that "this is not the labor union ..., this
is a separate group."

8:39: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON opined that therein lies the difficulty,
because society is sonmewhat dependent on the disclainer
appearing at the bottom of an advertisenent, and that disclainer
can be msleading. For exanple, he said the advertisenent could
just say, "Paid for by Boeing."

8:39:47 AM

MR. PTASIN stated that under AS 15.13.084, an expenditure cannot
be anonynous. The neaning of not being anonynobus is an issue
worthy of scrutiny. He said, "Wat we want them to disclose and
what we want in the disclainmers is a new terrain for us after
Ctizens United."

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON renarked that a nane can be anything, and
therefore is not necessarily representative of the holder of
that nane's position on an issue. He asked for clarification
regardi ng how Alaska's law will need to change.

MR. PTASIN responded, "It doesn't change the law with respect to

groups. " G oups currently report the expenditures nmade and
contributions received. | ndependent expenditures are different,
he said. |If corporations and |abor unions were entitled to make

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 11, 2010



corporate speech in Alaska, they would report that expenditure
wi thin 10 days.

8:42:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to AS 15.13.084(2),
whi ch states that a person may not nake an expenditure "using a
fictitious nane or wusing the name of another.” He said he
cannot find any definition of "fictitious nanme", and he asked if
regul ations define that or if there is precedent in the agency
itself that defines that. |If not, he asked what the genesis of
the legislative history is regarding what was intended by that
term

8:43:15 AM
MR. PTASI N responded that he does not know.
8:44: 00 AM

HOLLY HILL, Director, Al aska Public Ofices Conmm ssion (APQOC),
reported that there is a case currently before the conm ssion

which APOCC is not at |I|iberty to discuss. In response to
Representative G uenberg, she confirmed that the issue regarding
a fictitious nane is part of the case. In response to a follow

up request, she provided the follow ng: [the APCC conpl aint
nunber] 09-01-CD and [the Ofice of Administrative Hearings
(OAH) case nunber] APO 0231.

8:45: 20 AM

MR. DOSIK, in response to Chair Lynn, said APOCC will probably
have a decision regarding this case within several nonths.

8:46: 45 AM
MR. PTASIN, in response to Representative G uenberg, stated:

Through CGCtizens United we're only dealing wth
i ndependent corporation speech, we're only dealing
wi th independent |abor union speech. [ AS 15.13.084]
prohibits those entities from speaking anonynously in
that context. ... There's a separate contribution |aw
that says individuals ... who are entitled to nake
contributions can't nmake that contribution in the nanme
of anot her.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- February 11, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG proffered that a contribution is noney
to support sonebody's canpaign, while an expenditure is for a
political purpose, but not to support sonebody's canpaign.

MR PTASIN confirned that is accurate.
8:48: 05 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked about an expenditure to put on television
advertisements in opposition to or support of sonebody's

canpai gn.

MR. PTASIN questioned if Chair Lynn was trying to understand
whet her there is a law under which "you can't make i ndependent
expenditures in the name of another." He said the problem is
that AS 15.13.084 applies to expenditures and separate |aws
state that contributions cannot be nmade in the nane of another.

8:48: 49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he thinks the dilemma is that AS
15.13.084 is made noot because of the aforenentioned U S
Suprene Court ruling, and the conmttee is trying to figure out
whi ch di sclosures and reports, for exanple, it should prevent in

this new arena that were previously prohibited in Al aska. He
said the commttee should keep in mnd that expenditures that
are coordinated with a canmpaign no |longer fall under the
definition of independent expenditure. He said the Alaska |aw

regardi ng canpaign contributions was not overturned by Ctizens
Uni t ed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in response to Chair Lynn, clarified that
a corporation or I|abor union, under Ctizens United, could put
out an advertisenent in support of a candidate simlar to an
advertisement that the candidate put out himherself, "but they
woul dn't be able to get your graphics from you, because then
there woul d be a coordi nati on between your canpaign."”

CHAI R LYNN suggested all the corporation or |abor union would
have to do is scan the original graphics.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded that that is why it wll be
interesting for the conmttee to craft |aws that can be
control | ed.

8:51:34 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- February 11, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thinks confusion results from
the definition of "contribution” and "expenditure”, which can be
found on pages 49 and 50, respectively, of the aforenentioned
handout. He cited AS 15.13.400(4)(A), which read as foll ows:

(4) "contribution"

(A) nmeans a purchase, paynent , prom se or
obligation to pay, loan or |oan guarantee, deposit or
gift of noney, goods, or services for which charge is
ordinarily made and that is nade for the purpose of
i nfluencing the nomnation or election of a candidate,
and in AS 15.13.010(b) for the purpose of influencing
a ballot proposition or question, including the
paynment by a person other than a candidate or
political party, or conpensation for the personal
services of another person, that are rendered to the
candi date or political party;

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG cited AS 15.13.400(4)(A) (i), which read
as foll ows:

(6) "expenditure”

(A) nmeans a purchase or a transfer of noney or
anyt hing of value, or prom se or agreenent to purchase
or transfer noney or anything of value, incurred or
made for the purpose of

(1) influencing the nom nation or election of a
candi date or of any individual who files for
nom nation at a | ater date and becones a candi dat e;

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG then noted that sub-subparagraph (iv)
read as foll ows:

(1v) influencing the outcone of a Dballot
proposition or question;

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said, "These seem to me to be nearly
identical,"” and he asked what the difference is.

MR. PTASIN responded that coordinated expenditures can also be
contri butions.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, "So, it's a subset?"
MR. PTASIN answered no. He cautioned that it is necessary to be

careful when dealing with this area of |aw He stated his
belief that there are tines when an expenditure can also be a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- February 11, 2010



contri buti on. He said corporations and |abor wunions naking
i ndependent expenditure have to be wary of where the line has
been drawn, particularly after Ctizens United, where "the only
inplication to our law is an independent expenditure that has no
connection to contribution, it has no connection to a
coordi nated expenditure." He clarified, "The only thing
inplicated is an independent expenditure made from a corporate
treasury where there is no coordination with a candi date. So,
by its nature it can't be anywhere near a coordinated
expenditure; it can't be ... anywhere near a contribution.”

CHAIR LYNN said the goal in all this is to derive sonme statute
on which everyone can rely.

8:55:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG remarked that this seens to be an area
of law that has had add-ons and agency decisions that have
affected it, and he suggested that the Ilegislature should be
| ooking to clarify the | anguage.

CHAIR LYNN asked M. Ptasin if the admnistration is working on
legislation to clarify this language or if he would |ike the
| egi sl ature to work on such | anguage.

8:56:45 AM

MR. PTASIN responded that as an attorney with the Departnent of
Law, it is his job to alert policy nmakers of "the changing
| andscape of what's going on after GCitizens United." He
reiterated that he is working on internal analysis, and when
that analysis is presented, the policy makers can deci de whet her
changes are needed.

CHAIR LYNN indicated the need for soneone to "straighten out
this ness.”

8:57:36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON directed attention back to page 28 of the
handout, to the issue of using the nane of another. He asked if
there is an active definition of the "nane of another"” that is
cl ear enough.

8:58: 46 AM

MR PTASIN answered as foll ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- February 11, 2010



From an enforcenent perspective, if there were a case
where corporate treasury funds were being used to fund
a commercial, and they ... told us that it was from
just the CEOQ ... that would be a fictitious nane,
that would be using the nane of another, because what
you' ve done is you' ve used corporate treasury funds.
Essentially, from an enforcenent standpoint, you
would have a case to be brought before that
corporation - potentially that individual as well.

MR. PTASIN concurred that figuring out if these areas can be
defined further nmerits scrutiny.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON questioned whether the treasurer could
pay for the name w thout identifying the CEQ He suggested the
need to redefine the neaning of "nane".

[ REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG nodded. ]

MR. PTASIN said the issue that is being contenplated is the
creation of a broader or better disclainmer, which is a
di scussion that various states are having now.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON questioned whether there is a current
definition of "the name of another"” and "fictitious nanme" that
woul d work "in the situations that we've just discussed.”

9:00: 40 AM

M5. HILL said APOC has a regulation regarding contributions and
using the nane of another: 2 AAC 50. 258. She suggested that
some of the language in that regulation may be appropriate for
statutory or regul atory purposes.

9:01: 13 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked if Alaska can make expenditure and
di scl osure/disclaimer laws governing a nulti-national board of
directors.

MR. PTASIN answered, "Wth respect to expenditure, Citizens
United didn't directly take up that issue.” He said federal |aw

441 E prohibits foreign nationals from spending funds in
connection with both federal and state el ections.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- February 11, 2010



CHAIR LYNN said he knows that a foreign national, while not
being allowed to give so nuch as a penny to a [US.] politica
contribution, can be a voice in independent expenditure for or
agai nst "sonebody. "

MR. PTASIN reiterated that the wunder Ctizens United, the
federal election canpaign Act law that prohibits "purely”
foreign national corporations from speaking in state elections
is still valid.

CHAIR LYNN clarified he does not nean "purely,” but means those
boards conprised of some U S. Citizens and sone foreign
national s.

MR PTASIN said the distinction is that a foreign national board
menber cannot coordi nate to make i ndependent speech.

CHAIR LYNN said, "But they can vote, if that's what they do, to
make this expenditure."

MR. PTASIN explained that federal law allows a U. S. subsidiary
to "speak from its own treasury funds" - there cannot be any
coordination froma foreign national

9:03: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the only definition he has found
for "corporation" is in corporate code, AS 10.50.990(3), which
read as foll ows:

(3) "corporation" means a corporation organized
under the laws of this or another state, or of this or
anot her country;

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the conmmttee has the applicable
statutes at hand, but needs the related regulations. He said he
thinks the concept of Ctizens United deals with whether [a
corporation] can be prohibited from nmaking an independent
expenditure "to discuss a candidate or to discuss an issue

i ndependent of a canpaign"; however, Citizens United does not
deal with the next question, which is what kind of regulations
will be permssible "within that general parameter.” He said it

woul d helpful to know the limts of the U S. Suprenme Court
decision and the unresolved issues that may allow the
| egislature to further |egislate.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- February 11, 2010



MR. PTASIN responded that Representative Guenberg accurately
"characterized the | andscape of where we are.”

9:05: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his understanding that t he
committee has been told that Citizens United did not inpact
disclosure laws and reporting requirenents, but did inpact
speech. He offered his understanding that foreign corporations
- for exanple, BP - would not be able to nmke an independent
expendi ture. However, BP Alaska - a subsidiary of BP, forned
within the US. - could. He asked M. Ptasin if that 1is
correct.

MR. PTASIN responded yes. He said U S. subsidiaries are
"allowed to speak from profits nade in the US." The foreign
parent cannot coordi nate that nessage with the subsidiary.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the only restriction is that the
profits nust be nmade in the U S.

MR. PTASIN stated that the inportant distinction is that under
federal law, there cannot be any assistance from the parent
cor porati on.

9:07: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if Alaska has the option to [enact
law] nore restrictive than the federal |aw.

MR. PTASIN replied that after Ctizens United, the donestic
corporation has a First Amendnent right to mneke independent
expendi t ures.

9:08: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said there are other regulatory bodies
that may be affected. For exanple, the Federal Communications
Commi ssion has its own set of rules and has to "treat everyone
equally.” He questioned whether the effects of Citizens United
will still allow the commssion to continuing applying their
restrictions. He questioned how far the effects of the U S.

Suprene Court ruling would reach

9:09: 43 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- February 11, 2010



MR. PTASI N responded that he does not know FCC |law, but if there
is such a I aw wherein the FCC has any restriction on the ability
of a corporation or |abor union to make political speech, that
| aw was not challenged in Ctizens United.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked how far the |egislature needs to go
inits consideration of this issue.

MR. PTASIN reiterated that disclainmer and disclosure laws are
[still] wvalid. He mentioned Buckley v. Valeo. He rel ayed that
because speech rights exist, a law limting the amount of speech
that a corporation or |labor wunion can purchase is subject to
scrutiny. He stated, "The court took a very dim view of trying
to, in part, equalize speech, in Citizens United, referring back
to Buckley v. Valeo."

9:12: 34 AM

MR. PTASIN, in response to Representative Guenberg, said he is
not aware of any other cases before any appellate court that are
rai sing any subsidiary issues.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he thinks it will be inportant for
the legislature to be kept inforned of any related cases that
conme before the courts.

9:14: 03 AM

MR. PTASIN, in response to Representative Johnson, reiterated
that he has been advised to create the analysis to illustrate
for policy makers what the issues are. He said he cannot speak
to the next step. In response to a question from Chair Lynn, he
reiterated that he represents APOC and is an advisor to the
Ofice of the Attorney General.

9:16: 00 AM

ALPHEUS BULLARD, Legislative Council, Legislative Legal and
Research Services, said this is a dynamc area of |aw that would
be difficult to sinplify in Alaska Statutes, and, in sone ways,
the Citizens United case has nmade it nore conplicated. He said,
“In this case, not speaking to contributions and only to
i ndependent expenditures, we have yet another sort of special
area of canpaign finance |aw, where we have to cone up with new
di scl osure and disclainer requirenents.” He said it would nice
to sinplify Title 15, but he does not know "if this case
presents that opportunity.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- February 11, 2010



MR. BULLARD addressed previously asked questions. Regarding the
di scussion of AS 15.13.084, using a fictitious name or the nane
of another, he noted that under 15.13.040(p), the true source of
some contributions nust be disclosed. He said this is "a little
nmore on point than using a fictitious nanme or nane of another.”

He said it is possible wth disclosure and disclainer
requirenents to require an entity or corporation to disclose its
top contributors to "break through this veil of a nane.” He

suggested that the committee m ght consider some legislation in
t hat area.

9:18: 24 AM

MR. BULLARD addressed the previous discussion regarding the
mani pul ation of nedia air tinme. He said the analysis of
Citizens United talks about a pre-narketplace of ideas and
contenplates that there is unlimted amounts of nedia. He
stated, "And so, it seenms difficult - if noney is speech, and we

have said that we can't suppress speech based on the speaker's
corporate form - to regulate in that area about how nmuch air
time soneone could receive. I don't know what efforts in that
area would look like, but they would be difficult, given the
hol ding of this case.”

MR. BULLARD related that disclosure tine tables for persons
currently are not the same as the disclosure for the schedul es

that are required for candidate contributions. He suggested,
"Since nobst corporations, unless they were non-group entities,
weren't exposed to our disclosure rules before - they're nuch
different - you mght think about bringing those in line if that
is anenable to your policy objectives. ... There's nothing that

prevents us fromdoing that."
9:19:46 AM

MR. BULLARD, in response to Representative Seaton, said so far,
all of Alaska's disclosure rules and regulations |aws have been
upheld, but there could be a point where so nuch would be
required that it would be considered a bar to free speech. He
said he does not know if the argunents made regarding the
onerous quality of having to report electronically in "real
time" would apply to larger entities, corporations, and non-
profits, thus it 1is conceivable that the Ilegislature could
require real-time electronic recording to APOC

9:21: 05 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 11, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said currently the contribution, "who you
are," and "the principle of the treasurer" has to be reported,
while the "the contributions can be anonynous in sone areas."”
That does not apply with respect to candi dates. He offered his
understanding that M. Bullard had said that it wuld be a
policy call to "bring those in alignnent."” He said the
| egi sl ature has heard from sone organized groups that say they
do not want their nenbership to be made public. He asked, " So,
at what point does our constitutional right to privacy overlap
with our desire to know who's influencing our public policy, if
at all?"

9:22:14 AM

MR. BULLARD answered that at one end of the spectrum is
requiring an entity to reveal its five largest contributors,
while the other end of the spectrum is [requiring disclosure
information regarding] the anonynous contributor of $5 who has

bought a raffle ticket. He said the answer to Representative
Johnson's question is: "sonewher e between those two."
9:23: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he wonders what actions are being
taken by attorneys general and legislators in other states in
t he wake of Citizens United.

9:24:31 AM

MR. BULLARD responded that in general terns, he is aware of sone
efforts on the federal level in U S Congress that relate to the
Citizens United ruling, including: strengt hening disclosure
requi renents; working to have transparency in trade association;
revisiting the tax status of certain non-profits and
corporations to engage in political activity; dealing wth
foreign sources of funding; and broadening the definition of

coor di nati on. Regardi ng foreign sources of funding, he said it
is possible to have an Anmerican corporation or subsidiary that
has majority foreign ownership, where the sharehol ders

t hensel ves are foreign nationals, and it is not fair that those
woul d be covered by 2 USC 441 E Regar di ng coordi nation, he
related that AS 15.13.400(e) addresses independent expenditures,
and he suggested that the legislature could examne what
coordination in this context would be.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- February 11, 2010



CHAIR LYNN requested that M. Bullard put in witing the points
he just made.

9:26: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expressed his interest in hearing any
information from M. Bullard and the Departnent of Law regarding
coordi nation and independent expenditures. He then asked for
confirmati on that independent expenditures for free speech are
or shoul d be deduct abl e as busi ness expenditures.

MR. BULLARD responded that he is not famliar wth these

efforts. Not wi t hstandi ng that, he cautioned, "If it's going to
suppress speech, we've just noved the First Anendnent issue
el sewhere and turned it into sort of a prior restraint." He

said there are linmts on what can be done in that area.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, "lIs that not trunped by the
sovereign's power to tax and to determ ne what the deductibility
of certain expenditures ... [is]?"

MR. BULLARD replied that currently he has no answer for that
guesti on.

9:28:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked if, in the future, it would be
possi ble for a corporation or |abor union to file a case, get an
injunction, and stop a law put into place by the State of
Alaska, if it thinks the law is too cunbersone and infringes
upon its right to free speech.

MR. BULLARD said the answer depends upon the specifics of the
case and the ruling of the court. He said the corporation or
| abor wunion certainly could seek injunctive and "claritory”
relief, but it may or may not be granted.

9:29:21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON questioned if by allowing political speech
to be tax deductible to corporations, the state would be
financing that speech, even though the state does not finance
speech for individuals. He suggested that the state could
require the corporation or |abor union that w shes to exercise
political speech to pay for it itself.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- February 11, 2010



MR. BULLARD said Representative Seaton nmde a good |egal
argunent, and he said he does not know the answer.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he would like a followup |egal
opi nion on the matter.

9:30: 51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO questioned if ultimately Al aska should just
have state sponsorship of canpaigns.

MR. BULLARD answered that that is a political question.
9:31: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE = GRUENBERG offered hi s under st andi ng t hat
currently in the House Resources Standing Conmttee, there are
several bills addressing the tax policy related to the oil and
gas industry. He asked if an anendnent addressing the subject
of taxability and deductibility would fall wthin the subject
matter of those bills.

CHAI R LYNN said he thinks Representative Guenberg is "venturing
far."

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON proffered that allowable deductions
provi ded under Al aska's Clear & Equitable Share (ACES) prohibit
marketing and "that kind of stuff" from being deducted. He
stated his assunption that advocating for sonmething via
tel evision would be consi dered marketi ng.

9:32: 37 AM

CRAIG TILLERY, Deputy Attorney General, Cvil Dvision, Ofice
of the Attorney General, Departnment of Law, said he knows that
this is an area of great concern to the |egislature, but relayed
that he is not an expert in this area. He said his purpose is
to get a sense of what the |egislature needs from the departnent
and what the departnment wll be able to do for the | egislature.

9:33:17 AM
CHAIR LYNN said he would like advice as to what the committee
can do about this issue during the interim Furthernore, he

inquired as to whether new legislation is required in order for
everyone involved to "keep on the correct side of the law "

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- February 11, 2010



MR. TILLERY responded that nothing is required in the sense that
"this could be worked out through litigation." He said that is
not an efficient way to proceed. He said there are aspects of
Al aska's laws that are inpacted by the decision, and the nore

clarification citizens get the better. In response to Chair
Lynn, he said he thinks it is <correct that some form of
clarification - whether through |egislation, regulation, or
guidance - wll likely help to avoid litigation. He related
havi ng heard that sonme nenbers of the public have suggested that
they would be "litigating the effect of this case on our |aws."
9:36: 22 AM

MR. TILLERY, in response to Chair Lynn, said the departnent does
not have any recommendations for the legislature now, but is in
the process of finalizing an analysis to identify the direct and
indirect inpacts of Citizens United. That analysis wll allow
policy nakers to decide what, if anything they want to do about
it, at which point the departnment's role would be to assist the
policy makers in how to carry out the desired course of action

In response to a followup question, he said the departnent
hopes to have "sone final analysis"” conpleted within the next
week. He rem nded the comrittee that the departnent is working
to apply a conpl ex decision to conplex | aws.

9:38: 31 AM

CHAIR LYNN, in response to Representative Petersen, said any
| egislation that would be brought forward would probably be
presented as a commttee bill; therefore, the deadline for
personal bills would not apply.

9:39: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said he applauds Chair Lynn for hearing
this issue.

CHAIR LYNN opined that all those involved want to do what is
right, but need to know what the rules of the gane are.

9:40: 24 AM

MR. TILLERY clarified that the departnent is not trying to be
coy; it just needs to handle this issue with care.

9:40: 38 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- February 11, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he would like the attorney general's
opinion on where "sidebars" would be regarding the follow ng
i ssues that have been discussed: having a short timefranme for
di scl osure of expenditures; having "true ... expenditures"; and
the tax deductibility of independent expenditures. He said he
would also like to know if any of the definitions wunder
corporate law could address any of the potential problens
perceived on the horizon in the area of i ndependent
expendi t ur es.

CHAIR LYNN stated his preference for the governor and attorney
general to take the lead on this issue and |eave Legislative

Legal and Research Services to tackle other |egislation. He
added his assurance that the legislature would proceed wth
[related legislation referred by the governor] in a rapid
fashi on.

9:44: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if there was any restriction in the
Citizens United ruling regarding tine periods or if it covered
the entire political process.

MR. Tl LLERY deferred to M. Ptasin.
9:45: 01 AM
MR PTASI N st at ed:

They've afforded the First Anmendnent speech right to
corporations to nmake independent expenditures, and
| abor unions, as well. [In] the specific federal |aw
there were these little w ndow periods, and
even inside those w ndow periods, the corporations and
| abor unions could form a [political action comittee
(PAC)] and speak inside those little w ndows of tinme,
but that still wasn't good enough, there still wasn't
a conpelling governnent interest to curtail First
Amendnent speech leading up to these primary and
general el ections.

Not hing from the analysis, in ny view, if you take it
back and say, "Wll, what if we change that w ndow of
opportunity,” again, there's nothing in ny view that

would lead ne to think that there's sone way to
outright ban that independent expenditure if it's
political speech.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- February 11, 2010



VR. PTASI N, in response to a followup question from
Representative Seaton, said given that it was the rationale for
the anti-distortion conpelling governnent interest that all of
the messaging 30-60 days before elections is diluting the
message of others and creating a problem in the political
mar ket pl ace, trying to "back up the wi ndow' results in the sane
probl em taki ng speech out of the political nmarketplace. M.
Ptasin said he thinks that after Ctizens United, the court
would take a dim view of "any kind of attenpt to take that
away. "

9:47:20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if it would be within the bounds of
the U S. Suprenme Court ruling and the State of Alaska's laws if
corporations and unions were allowed to nmake contributions, but
when they did they would have to contribute equal time and noney
to the person that they opposed. He said he is talking about
expenditure, and he explained that he is trying to neutralize
the effect of the U S. Supreme Court ruling.

MR. PTASIN said he thinks that gets into sone of the issues that
M. Bullard presented regarding prior restraint. He stated,
"Now that this speech is protected, you have to be careful, but
| couldn't comment right off whether that exact scenario would
be constitutional or unconstitutional; we'd really have to give
it some real thought.” In response to Representative Gatto, he
explained that he avoids giving an opinion when asked if
sonmet hing would be constitutional, because any opinion he gives
woul d not be "anywhere near exact enough.™

CHAIR LYNN reiterated his preference for the governor to take
the |l ead on this issue.

9:49: 36 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else who
w shed to testify, closed public testinony.

9:49: 49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN comrented that the U.S. Suprene Court
ruling could have lasting inplications. For exanple, it mght
danpen the interest of the average citizen who may feel that now
that corporations have a nore or less unlimted ability for
speech made through advertising, the individual's voice is too

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- February 11, 2010



small to matter. He said there is already a segnent of society
that feels that way, and this may conmpound that view.  Likew se,
he said this may affect the nunber of people who want to run for
of fice. He opined that it would be good if the Ilegislature
could find a way to keep sone of Alaska's current disclainmer and
di sclosure laws effective in order to "keep the playing field
reasonably | evel ."

9:52:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he is interested in the issue of
tax deductibility and will be looking to see if all of the
potential expenditures fall wunder the prohibition against using
the deductions for marketing. He said he would be contacting
| egal council regarding that matter.

9:52:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said he appreciates the chair's desire to
have the governor address this issue, but pointed out that the
House State Affairs Standing Comrmittee is the policy body. He
suggested that the <chair draft a Iletter to the governor
requesting that something be done, and take charge if the Ofice
of the Governor does not.

CHAI R LYNN responded that he would draft a letter and show it to
commttee nenbers for their feedback.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG sai d that woul d be great.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO stated his belief that even though there
may be difficulties that result from it, the US. Suprene
Court's ruling was the right decision, because it supports
freedom He expressed a desire to ensure that [corporations and
| abor wunions] have the freedom of speech while not having a
"spectacul ar influence on elections.”

9:56: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON concurred with Representative Gatto. He
clarified that his intent is not to fight the U S. Suprene Court
ruling, but to figure out who will take the |lead on conform ng
Al aska St at utes when necessary.

9:57:35 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- February 11, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expressed concern that corporations nmay
have nore rights and protections than individuals "expressing

speech in these expenditures.™ He offered his wunderstanding
that the purpose of a corporation is to offer Iliability
protection for the stockholders "and others.” He said he would
like to see if a change in liability protection for |iable and
sl ander for cor porations in execution of i ndependent
expenditures is needed so that that protection mrrors that of
an individual. He offered an exanple.

10: 00: 19 AM

CHAIR LYNN stated that the bottom line is figuring out what is
best for Al aska.

10: 01: 05 AM

ADJ OURNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 10:01
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- February 11, 2010



